
 

Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone Erin Anton at 
(909) 797-5117, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related modification or 
accommodation. 
 
Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the workshop packet are 
available for public inspection during normal business hours at the District office located at 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa.  Meeting 
material is also be available on the District’s website at www.yvwd.dst.ca.us 

 
 

Notice and Agenda of a Board Workshop 
Tuesday, January 26, 2016 at 4:00 p.m. 

 

 

MEETING LOCATION: District Administration Building 
 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa 

 

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD: Director Ken Munoz, Division 1 
Director Bruce Granlund, Division 2 
Director Jay Bogh, Division 3 
Director Lonni Granlund, Division 4 
Director Tom Shalhoub, Division 5 

  

 

I. Call to Order 
II. Public Comments  At this time, members of the public may address the Board of Directors on matters within its 

jurisdiction; however, no action or significant discussion may take place on any item not on the meeting agenda.   
III. Staff Report 
IV. Presentations 

A. Overview of the California Drought and Yucaipa Valley Water District’s Action Plan Related 
to the State Water Resources Control Board Mandatory Restrictions to Achieve a 36% 
Reduction in Potable Urban Water Use [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013 - Page 5 of 
220] 

B. Overview of the Yucaipa Valley Water District’s Strategic Plan for a Sustainable Future - 
The Integration and Preservation of Resources and Proposed Enhancements [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 16-014 - Page 37 of 220] 

V. Operational Updates 
A. Overview of Operational Activities in Preparation and Response to the 2016 Winter Storm 

Events [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-015 - Page 50 of 220] 
B. Review of Updated Standard Specifications for Drinking Water, Recycled Water, and Sewer 

Facilities [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016 - Page 62 of 220] 
VI. Capital Improvement Projects 

A. Status Report on the Construction of a 6.0 Million Gallon Drinking Water Reservoir R-12.4 
- Calimesa [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-017 - Page 196 of 220] 

B. Status Report on the Digester Cleaning and Cover Replacement Project at the Wochholz 
Regional Water Recycling Facility [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-018 - Page 200 of 220] 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 1 of 220



Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop Page 2 
 
 

 

VII. Administrative Issues 
A. Demolition of the Building, Basement and Foundation at 35192 Cedar Avenue, Yucaipa 

(Assessor Parcel Number 0303-232-17) [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-019 - Page 205 
of 220] 

B. Overview of Procurement Methodologies and Emergency Procedures [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 16-020 - Page 210 of 220] 

VIII. Director Comments 
IX. Adjournment  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 2 of 220



 

Staff Report 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 3 of 220



 

Presentations 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 4 of 220



 

Workshop Memorandum 16-013 

Date: January 26, 2016 

Subject: Overview of the California Drought and Yucaipa Valley Water District’s 
Action Plan Related to the State Water Resources Control Board 
Mandatory Restrictions to Achieve a 36% Reduction in Potable Urban 
Water Use 

 
On May 5, 2015, the State Water Resources Control Board (“SWRCB”) adopted emergency 
regulations to achieve a 25% statewide reduction in potable urban water use.  These stringent 
water use regulations will require the Yucaipa Valley Water District to achieve a 36% reduction 
from the amount of drinking water produced in 2013.  In order to achieve this level of water 
conservation, the Yucaipa Valley Water District will need to provide water based on the following 
water demand curve. 

 
  

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

450,000

500,000

T
ho

us
an

d 
G

al
lo

ns

Actual Water Consumption and Drought Regulatory Requirements

Potable Water Demand (kgal) Governor Brown Drought Compliance Goal

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 5 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 2 of 32 

The chart above illustrates the difference between Governor Brown’s Drought Compliance Goal 
in 2014 at a 25% reduction, and in 2015 at a 36% reduction in potable water use based on the 
2013 baseline period. 
 
To achieve Governor Brown’s Drought Compliance Goal of a 36% reduction in potable water use 
from the 2013 baseline period, the Yucaipa Valley Water District has initiated numerous drought 
conservation programs and conducted a series of monthly community workshops to provide 
information to our customers. 
 
To achieve the 36% reduction, customers will need to immediately reduce the amount of water 
used for outdoor landscape purposes by 50% to 60%.   
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to discuss the ongoing and evolving implementation strategy 
for our community. 
 
 

Drought Status and Update 
 
The U.S. Seasonal Drought Outlook shows predicted trends for areas experiencing drought, as 
well as indicating areas where new droughts may develop.  The NOAA Climate Prediction Center 
issues this monthly product in conjunction with their long-lead temperature and precipitation 
outlooks on the first and third Thursday of each month and when weather events warrant an 
interim update.  The general large-scale trends depicted are based on numerous indicators, 
including short and long-range forecasts. A discussion detailing the atmospheric, hydrologic, and 
climatic conditions affecting the drought trends is included. 
 
Human factors, such as water demand and water management, can exacerbate the impact that 
drought has on a region. Because of the interplay between a natural drought event and various 
human factors, drought means different things to different people. In practice, drought is defined 
in a number of ways that reflect various perspectives and interests. 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 6 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 3 of 32 

 
Latest Seasonal Assessment - During the past four weeks, widespread heavy rain and 
mountain snowfall resulted in significant drought reductions across the Northwest. Drought 
relief also occurred across parts of northern California, the Great Basin, and the Desert 
Southwest. In contrast, drier than normal conditions promoted short term drought 
development across parts of the northern High Plains. East of the Mississippi, a potent winter 
storm removed all remaining drought areas across Indiana, Michigan, and Ohio. While above-
normal precipitation alleviated drought across northern New Jersey and eastern Pennsylvania, 
moderate drought conditions persisted across southeastern New England and near Niagara 
Falls. During the next 3.5 months, El Niño conditions favor continued drought improvement 
or removal across southern Oregon, California, the Great Basin, and the Southwest, while an 
anticipated dry signal supports drought persistence across the Northwest. Despite this dry 
signal on the seasonal time scale, short range forecasts indicate heavy precipitation across 
the Pacific Northwest and Intermountain West, which would likely limit additional drought 
development. Drought expansion becomes more likely across the eastern Rockies and 
adjacent High Plains, however, where incipient snowpack conditions are poorest and the ENSO 
signal is strongest. Forecasts favoring wetness at all time scales along the Eastern Seaboard 
make drought removal the most likely outcome across southeastern New England, while an 
eastward shifted storm track due to El Niño favors drought persistence near Niagara Falls. 
Continued drought expansion is likely across Hawaii due to the strong El Niño, while a wetter 
than normal dry season across Puerto Rico may support drought reductions in areas where 
drought conditions are less entrenched.  
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 7 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 4 of 32 

Forecaster: Adam Allgood  
 
Next Seasonal Drought Outlook issued: February 18, 2016 at 8:30 AM EST 
Source: http://www.cpc.ncep.noaa.gov/products/expert_assessment/sdo_summary.php  
 
The National Weather Service and the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration provides 
regular predictions for temperature and precipitation forecasts throughout the United States.  The 
following charts show the temperature and precipitation probability for the next month, as well as 
a compilation of future forecasts for temperature and precipitation. 
 

Temperature Probability 
February 2016 

Precipitation Probability 
February 2016 

  
United Stated Drought Monitor Illustration 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 8 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 5 of 32 

NOAA Multi-Season Precipitation Predictions - Three Month, Rolling Periods 
http://www.cpc.ncep.noaa.gov/products/predictions/multi_season/13_seasonal_outlooks/color/p.gif 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 9 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 6 of 32 

NOAA Multi-Season Temperature Predictions - Three Month, Rolling Periods 
http://www.cpc.ncep.noaa.gov/products/predictions//multi_season/13_seasonal_outlooks/color/t.gif 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 10 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 7 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 11 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 8 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 12 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 9 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 13 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 10 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 14 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 11 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 15 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 12 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 16 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 13 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 17 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 14 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 18 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 15 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 19 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 16 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 20 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 17 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 21 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 18 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 22 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 19 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 23 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 20 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 24 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 21 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 25 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 22 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 26 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 23 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 27 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 24 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 28 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 25 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 29 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 26 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 30 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 27 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 31 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 28 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 32 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 29 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 33 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 30 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 34 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 31 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 35 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-013  Page 32 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 36 of 220



 

Workshop Memorandum 16-014 

Date: January 26, 2016 

Subject: Overview of the Yucaipa Valley Water District’s Strategic Plan for a 
Sustainable Future - The Integration and Preservation of Resources 
and Proposed Enhancements 

 
On August 20, 2008, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 11-2008 establishing a 
strategic plan for the management, integration and preservation of water resources.  This Plan 
embodied the concepts of water resource management and the full integration of services offered 
by the Yucaipa Valley Water District as shown below. 
 

 
 
With an integrated system in place, the Plan outlined specific goals and strategies related to the 
following topics: 

 Planning and Development; 
 Surface Water Supplies; 
 Groundwater Supplies; 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 37 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-014  Page 2 of 12 

 Recycled Water;  
 Water Conservation and Use Efficiency; 
 Allocation of Imported Supplemental Water; 
 Compatibility with Water Shortage Response Stages; 
 Growth and Development;  
 Watershed Management; 
 Energy Management; 
 Pollution Prevention; and 
 Infrastructure Management. 

 
The District’s Sustainability Plan is available online from our website at www.yvwd.dst.ca.us.   
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to provide an overview of the strategic plan and a discussion 
of proposed modifications to the document.   
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 38 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-014  Page 3 of 12 

Resolution No. 11-2008 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

ADOPTING A LONG-TERM WATER RESOURCE 
SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY POLICY FOR THE AREA 
SERVED BY THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

  
  
WHEREAS, water is a basic and essential need of every living creature, and, as such, the health, 
comfort, and standard of living of the citizens of the Yucaipa Valley Water District (the “District”) 
depend on an adequate and reliable long-term supply of potable water; and  
 
WHEREAS, water resources are recognized as a limited and precious natural resource in 
Southern California; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Yucaipa Valley Water District relies upon imported water as supplemental water 
supplies to meet the existing and future potable water demands of our customers; and 
 
WHEREAS, declining groundwater levels and unreliable surface water supplies have made it 
necessary for the District to efficiently use its available potable water supplies and to fully develop 
all existing water resources in order to assure a sustainable supply of water resources for future 
generations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Yucaipa Valley Water District has determined that it is prudent, practical and 
sensible given the uncertainty of importing supplemental water to demonstrate the adequacy of 
water supply availability by physically receiving supplemental water prior to the issuance of 
building permits for new development; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the community to provide local solutions to the regional 
and statewide water issues that are anticipated on impacting the water resources we rely on for 
our economic prosperity and quality of life; and 
 
WHEREAS, this resolution has been prepared based on the extensive review, discussion, and 
public input associated with the document entitled, A Strategic Plan for a Sustainable Future - 
The Integration and Preservation of Resources adopted on August 20, 2008 (the “Strategic Plan”). 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that the Board of Directors of the 
Yucaipa Valley Water District does hereby order as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. Concepts of Sustainability 
 

A. The document entitled, A Strategic Plan for a Sustainable Future - The Integration and 
Preservation of Resources adopted on August 20, 2008, is hereby adopted by the Board 
of Directors and posted to the District’s website to provide a basic foundation for the 
understanding of this Resolution. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 39 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-014  Page 4 of 12 

B. This Resolution has been drafted to provide the implementation strategy of the concepts 
contained within the A Strategic Plan for a Sustainable Future - The Integration and 
Preservation of Resources.  This Strategic Plan makes known the uncertainty, unreliability 
and unpredictable nature of our imported water supplies while providing a route for 
navigating the future to protect the interests of our current and future customers.  
Therefore, while not a guarantee of future conditions or actions by the Board of Directors, 
this Resolution provides a mechanism to allow for the economic development and 
expansion of the region based on an understanding of the circumstances as they currently 
exist. 
 

C. In the future, when imported water supplies may become unambiguous and certain, the 
concepts of the Strategic Plan are intended to continue as sound policy for existing 
customers and new development. 

 
 
SECTION 2. Planning and Development 
 

A. Financial Planning.  To ensure the safety and reliability of our resources, it is important to 
ensure adequate finances are available to cover routine operational costs as well as the 
costs of maintaining and upgrading infrastructure.   
 
1. Financial plans shall be developed every five years and include a forecast of a ten-

year period that will illustrate the District’s anticipated financial position, financial 
operations and cash flow. 

 
2. When applicable, the District staff shall present water, wastewater and non-potable 

rate resolutions for consideration that provide a minimum five year projection of rates 
to allow customers the ability to plan accordingly for rate adjustments based on the 
information included in the financial plans. 
 

3. The District staff shall maintain a financial reserve policy outlining the objectives for 
adequately funding an operating reserve, a capital and equipment replacement 
reserve, a rate stabilization reserve, and a debt service reserve. 

 
B. Infrastructure Planning:  The planning of infrastructure shall be based on the following 

general principles and strategies: 
 
1. The District staff shall implement planning tools necessary to reasonably forecast a 

fifty (50) year planning horizon for Urban Water Management Plans, infrastructure 
master plans, and other related resource planning documents to ensure long-term 
objectives are incorporated into the planning process. 

 
2. The District staff shall update infrastructure master planning documents every ten (10) 

years.  Upon adoption of this Resolution, the District staff shall provide a 
recommendation to the Board of Directors for the completion of a master planning 
document. 

 
C. Development Planning.  The goal of development planning is to support development 

based on a diverse portfolio of water resources in order to minimize impacts related to 
drought, contamination, and other potential source water problems.  Common planning 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 40 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-014  Page 5 of 12 

techniques may include the following sustainable planning and development strategies:  
 

1. Long-term water resource planning that incorporates sustainable growth principles;  
 

2. Cooperating with other regional governing agencies and water users in the 
development planning process;  

 
3. Addressing water quality and quantity issues to provide long-term protection of our 

natural resources;  
 
4. The District staff shall maximize the use of non-potable water for developments with 

the use of dual plumbing and other measures to provide for a more reliable water 
supply system. 

 
 
SECTION 3.  Surface Water Supplies  
  

A. Storm Water Capture.  The District staff is encouraged to coordinate with local planning 
agencies to develop consistent guidelines for managing storm water on properties in such 
a manner to maximize recharge and minimize pollution.   

 
 
SECTION 4.  Groundwater Supplies  
 

A. Groundwater Supplies.  It is in the best interested of the District to maintain groundwater 
withdrawals in existing wells by: 

 
1. Avoiding pumping of existing well fields beyond long-term recharge capability; and  

 
2. Cooperating on a regional level in safe sustainable groundwater withdrawal. 
 

B. Local Water Banks.  The District will implement local groundwater banks (“Groundwater 
Banks”) to store water for existing customers and new development.  The Groundwater 
Banks shall be used in conjunction with the dual-plumbed requirements to ensure 
sufficient water supplies exist to serve the needs of all new development during normal, 
single dry, and multiple dry water years.  The location of the proposed Groundwater Banks 
may include, but not be limited to: the Yucaipa Management Zone, Beaumont 
Management Zone, San Timoteo Management Zone or any other location that provides 
similar benefits. 
 
1. Existing Customer Groundwater Deposits.  It shall be a priority of the District to secure 

additional imported water supplies when available to meet the needs of existing 
customers.  Therefore, the District shall collect sufficient funds necessary to obtain an 
additional 15% of the total annual potable water for future use.  Funds collected for 
this program shall be used solely for the purchase of imported supplemental water to 
augment the groundwater basins for future groundwater extraction, which includes, 
but is not limited to: direct groundwater recharge; groundwater injection; in lieu 
groundwater recharge; or any other form of supplemental water deposited into a 
groundwater basin for future potable use.   
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 41 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-014  Page 6 of 12 

2. New Development Groundwater Requirements.  For provisions related to the 
requirements of new development, see Section 9. 

 
 
SECTION 5.  Recycled (Non-Potable) Water  
  

A. Non-Potable Water.  The District shall strive to maximize the use of non-potable water for 
beneficial reuse and prioritize non-potable water use over potable water use where 
regulations permit.  This shall be accomplished by:  
 
1. Enhancing the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility to maintain an exceptional 

quality of recycled water to maximize the beneficial use of the water resource. 
 

2. Developing a strategy to expand the District’s existing non-potable water distribution 
system to provide for cost-effective delivery of non-potable water. 

 
3. Aggressively develop and market the use of recycled water as a substitute for potable 

water where regulations permit. 
 
4. The District staff shall maximize the use of non-potable water for developments with 

the use of dual plumbing and other measures to provide for a more reliable water 
supply system. 

 
 
SECTION 6.  Water Conservation and Use Efficiency  
  

A. Water Use Efficiency.  The District shall develop and maintain policies that reduce peak 
seasonal water demands and encourages the reduction of per capita/per day consumption 
of potable water through:  
 
1. The use of non-potable water for residential, commercial, institutional and agricultural 

irrigation demands; 
 
2. Educational programs;  
 
3. Rate structures;  

 
B. Statewide Conservation Efforts.  The District shall participate in the California Urban Water 

Conservation Council and implement those best management practices (BMPs) that 
provide the District with a reasonable cost : benefit relationship. 

 
C. Conservation Programs.  The District shall develop and implement water conservation 

tools that focus on education based programs that can be implemented at the local 
schools and information campaigns for our current customers. 

 
 
SECTION 7.  Allocation of Imported Supplemental Water 
 

A. Allocation of Supplemental Water Resources.  Due to the limitations on imported 
supplemental water as the result of drought conditions, lawsuits, environmental 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 42 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-014  Page 7 of 12 

regulations and possibly climate change, the District will hereby allocate supplemental 
water resources as follows: 
 
1. Priority One - Direct Delivery for Existing Customers.  The highest priority for 

supplemental water shall be for the direct delivery of filtered water delivered to our 
customers from the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility.  Upon fulfilling 
this priority, any remaining available supplemental water shall be allocated to the next 
priority. 
 

2. Priority Two - Groundwater Adjudication Obligations.  The second highest priority for 
supplemental water shall be for the replenishment obligations associated with any 
groundwater adjudication.  This priority shall generally be achieved with the production 
of water from the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility.  Upon fulfilling this 
priority, any remaining available supplemental water shall be allocated to the next 
priority. 
 

3. Priority Three - Groundwater Banking for Future Reliability.  Existing residential, 
business and institutional customers above shall contribute 15% of their potable water 
consumption to the Water Bank for the next year.  Delivery of this water shall be based 
on the ability of District staff to fulfill this priority within the following calendar year.  This 
priority shall be required of all existing water customers and begin immediately upon 
establishment of water service for new customers.  Upon fulfilling this priority, any 
remaining available supplemental water shall be allocated to the next priority. 
 

4. Priority Four - Parcel Development Process.  The Parcel Development Process is a 
component of the Water Resource Validation Program which accomplishes the 
objectives of (A) demonstrating that sufficient water supplies exist for development to 
occur; and (B) providing sufficient water to enhance the resource reliability and 
sustainability of new development.  This Program requires the deposit of supplemental 
water to the Water Bank prior to the issuance of a building permit.  The provisions for 
the Parcel Development Process are included below as part of the Water Resource 
Validation Program. 

 
 
SECTION 8.  Compatibility with Water Shortage Response Stages 
 

A. Water Shortage Response Stages.  The 2005 Urban Water Management Plan provides 
for voluntary and mandatory levels of progressively more aggressive water demand 
reduction requirements.  The triggers for these stages will likely be those affecting 
imported water sources, provided the Yucaipa, Beaumont and San Timoteo Management 
Zones continues to be managed in a safe yield condition over the long-term.  The response 
stages may also be invoked during an emergency to handle short-term events, such as 
earthquake damage, pipeline ruptures, and water quality issues.   
 
The Board of Directors will determine the appropriate state of implementation, with 
authority hereby delegated to the General Manager for the implementation of Stage 1 and 
Stage 2 Water Shortage Response Stages. 
 
The following Water Use Restrictions have been modified from the 2005 Urban Water 
Management Plan to more accurately incorporate the operation of the filtration facility and 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 43 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-014  Page 8 of 12 

include anticipated impacts on new development based upon consideration and 
implementation of Water Shortage Response Stages 3, 4 and 5 by the Board of Directors.  
The implementation of Water Shortage Response Stages 3, 4 and 5 shall explicitly state 
the allowable uses of water and impacts on new developments.  The Board reserves the 
right to modify and implement any number of water curtailment activities based on the 
actual conditions at the time. 

 
 Program  

Type 
Water Use 

Restrictions 
Overall 

Goal 
Anticipated Impact on  

New Development  
Stage 1 Voluntary Up to a 10% Reduction 

from Selected Areas 
- - No anticipated impacts to new 

development. 
Stage 2 Voluntary Up to 10% District-wide 10% Reduction New applicants for the Crystal 

Development Program may not 
be accepted under Stage 2. 

Stage 3 Mandatory Up to 20% District-wide 20% Reduction Previously secured Crystal 
developments may proceed.  

New applicants for the Crystal 
Development Program may not 

be accepted under State 3. 
Stage 4 Mandatory Up to 35% District-wide 35% Reduction Crystal Standard 

developments may be 
restricted.  New applicants for 

the Crystal Development 
Program may not be accepted. 

Stage 5 Mandatory Up to 50% District-wide 50% Reduction No new standard 
developments of Crystal 
development projects. 

 
 
SECTION 9.  Growth and Development 
 

A. Dual Plumbing for New Developments.  Each new residential, commercial, industrial and 
institutional development shall design and construct infrastructure sufficient to provide 
potable drinking water and non-potable irrigation water to each lot.   
 
1. At a minimum, each new home shall be constructed with the necessary on-site 

improvements to receive potable water and non-potable water from two separate 
water meters.  These two water service connections shall be installed per District 
standards and regulations to allow for non-potable irrigation service and potable water 
service to each property.  In cases where non-potable water unavailable, the non-
potable irrigation meter shall be supplied potable water in the interim. 
 

2. For developments of ten units or more, the District shall require on-site improvements 
as provided above, in addition to in tract non-potable infrastructure to support the non-
potable irrigation system. 

 
3. The District staff shall consider the size of the development, the proximity to existing 

non-potable infrastructure, and other pertinent information when off-site non-potable 
water infrastructure is required as part of a development agreement. 

 
B. Elimination of Septic Systems.  The stringent water quality objectives established by the 

Regional Water Quality Control Board requires the Yucaipa Valley Water District to 
minimize the salinity impacts to the groundwater supplies in the Yucaipa Management 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 44 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-014  Page 9 of 12 

Zone, the San Timoteo Management Zone and the Beaumont Management Zone.  See 
Section 12 for the pollution prevention requirements associated with new development. 
 

C. Groundwater Deposits for New Development.  The District provides potable water based 
on a long-term average of approximately 50% groundwater and 50% imported 
supplemental water to our existing customers.  This average will fluctuate based on the 
water resource management strategies of the District.   
 
Any supplemental imported water provided during the entitlement process shall become 
the property of the District at the time building permits are issued. 
 
1. All New Developments.  For all building permits issued after July 1, 2009, new 

development shall be required to appropriately fund the purchase of seven (7) acre 
feet of imported supplemental water prior to the issuance of a grading or building 
permit.  The rate for this supplemental imported water shall be based on the 
anticipated imported water delivery rate charged by the State Water Project Contractor 
providing service to the location of the new development.  The District shall 
accommodate the early payment of this fee for any parcel proposed to be developed.   
 
In response to water shortage conditions, the Board of Directors may at any time cease 
the authorization of grading or building permits based on the implementation of certain 
Water Shortage Response Stages.  Based on information at the time this Resolution 
was prepared, the District staff anticipates recommending that the Board of Directors 
cease the authorization of grading and building permits for Standard Developments 
during Water Shortage Response Stages 3, 4 and 5, except as provided below. 

 
2. Achieving a Crystal Status Development.  Any new development may achieve the 

status of a Crystal Development by securing the physical delivery of 15.68 acre feet of 
imported supplemental water per Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU).  The rate for this 
supplemental imported water shall be based on the charges to the District by the 
respective State Water Project Contractor. 
 
In response to water shortage conditions, the Board of Directors may at any time cease 
the authorization of grading or building permits based on the implementation of certain 
Water Shortage Response Stages.  Based on information at the time this Resolution 
was prepared, the District staff anticipates recommending that the Board of Directors 
cease the authorization of grading and building permits for Crystal Developments 
during Water Shortage Response Stage 5 with possible restrictions impacting 
development during Water Shortage Response Stage 4. 
 
a. The developer shall submit an application for each parcel within the proposed 

development (by Assessor’s Parcel Number) and deposits sufficient funds for the 
purchase and delivery of imported supplemental water. 
 

b. The District staff will assign a completed application to the appropriate processing 
bin for supplemental imported water deliveries based on the availability of supply 
and facilities required to deposit (by recharge or injection) the supplemental water 
into the Groundwater Bank. 

 
c. The availability of supplemental imported water to fulfill the requests associated 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 45 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-014  Page 10 of 12 

with the Crystal Status Development Program shall be based on the priorities 
provided in the Allocation of Supplemental Water Resources provisions above. 

 
d. Based on the total size of the tract, parcel map, or planning area (not including 

phased portions of developments), the District staff shall deposit (by recharge or 
injection) imported supplemental water into the Water Bank equally from each of 
the following categories based on the completed applications: 
 
i. Residential Development - 1 lot development 

 
ii.  Residential Development - 2-10 lot development 

 
iii. Residential Development - 11-50 lot development 

 
iv. Residential Development - 51-100 lot development 

 
v. Residential Development - 101-150 lot development 

 
vi. Residential Development - 151-200 lot development 

 
vii. Residential Development - 200 or more lot development 

 
viii. Commercial Development 

 
ix. Institutional Development  
 

e. The District shall charge the developer for any additional costs related to the 
deposit (by recharge or injection) of supplemental water into the Water Bank and 
payment shall be received prior to issuing the Crystal Status Achievement for the 
project. 
 

f. Upon completing the deposit (by recharge or injection) of imported supplemental 
water into the Groundwater Bank, the District shall issue a Notice of Crystal Status 
Development.  This Notice provides documentation of achieving one component 
of the development process by the District and does not relieve the developer from 
completing any other requirements established by the District. 

 
g. The Board of Directors may elect to consider other creative conservation measures 

to be used to achieve the status of a Crystal Development.  Upon adoption of a 
subsequent resolution that provides quantifiable comparable benefits this program 
may be expanded to include automatic meter reading, existing home retrofits, 
landscape retrofits, etc.. 

 
3. Parcel Boundary Changes (Splits and Divisions).  Imported supplemental water 

previously paid and delivered as part of the standard development process or a Crystal 
Status Development shall be allocated equally to all new parcels in the event of a 
realignment of the parcel boundary or a division of the parcel.  This may change the 
compliance of properties, whereby additional funds will be needed for compliance with 
this section.  In the event new parcels results in an excess of groundwater supply, the 
property owner shall provide a written request for reimbursement at the cost previously 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 46 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-014  Page 11 of 12 

paid to secure the imported supplemental water. 
 
 
SECTION 10.  Watershed Management 
  

A. Management Zone Protection.  Develop programs for the Yucaipa Management Zone and 
the Beaumont Management Zone that maintain the water quality and quantity in a manner 
that protects the local water supplies and is consistent with the 2004 Basin Plan adopted 
by the Regional Water Quality Control Board.   

 
B. Sanitary Surveys.  Conduct a routine sanitary survey of the Yucaipa Management Zone 

and develop a sanitary survey that identifies active and potential points of pollution. 
 

C. Pollution Prevention.  Develop methods for eliminating pollution sources related to the 
contribution of salinity in excess of the objectives set by the Regional Water Quality Control 
Board for the Yucaipa 

 
 
SECTION 11.  Energy Management 
  

A. Energy Conservation.  Research methods to utilize less power at District facilities and 
lessen dependence of bundled power generators. 

 
 
SECTION 12.  Pollution Prevention 
  

A. Basin Plan Objectives.  The District staff shall develop methods for eliminating pollution 
sources related to the contribution of salinity in excess of the objectives set by the Regional 
Water Quality Control Board for the Yucaipa, Beaumont and San Timoteo Management 
Zone in the 2004 Basin Plan.  
 

B. Sanitary Survey.  The District staff shall conduct a routine sanitary survey of the Yucaipa 
Management Zone and develop a sanitary survey that identifies active and potential points 
of pollution as required by the Department of Public Health. 
 

C. Requirement to Connect to the Sewer System.  In order to protect the Yucaipa and 
Beaumont Groundwater Management Zones in a manner consistent with Section 12, 
paragraph A above, the District shall require new developments consisting of five or more 
Equivalent Dwelling Units within 1,000 feet of any existing or previously agreed upon 
sewage collection facility must extend the public sewer line to serve said development.   
 

D. Dry Sewer Collection System.  In order to protect the groundwater quality as required by 
the Basin Plan adopted by the Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Control Board, the 
District shall require new developments to install dry sewer collection systems if existing 
active sewer collection facilities are not available. 

 
1. Construction of One to Four Units or Development on Five Acres or More.  

Developments consisting of one to four Equivalent Dwelling Units, or a development 
on more than five acres (average gross) per lot shall not be required to install dry 
sewers or connect to the sewer collection system unless any portion of the property 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 47 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-014  Page 12 of 12 

being developed is within 500 feet from the sewer system which could serve the parcel. 
 

2. Installation of Dry Sewer Collection Infrastructure.  The installation of a dry sewer 
collection system shall extend the full length of the property to the property boundary 
generally upstream of the parcel/development.  The dry sewer collection system shall 
also be extended downstream offsite of the subject property a distance of 100 feet per 
Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU) after the first EDU.  For example, a development of 
five EDUs shall extend the dry sewer collection system 400 feet downstream toward 
the existing sewer collection system.   

 
E. Sewer Septic System Offset Program.  Any new development not connected to an active 

sewer collection system shall be required to participate in a Sewer Septic System Offset 
Program to mitigate the pollution created by the addition of a new septic system.  This 
Program requires the conversion/connection of existing septic systems to the sewer in the 
service area of the Yucaipa Valley Water District.  Participation in this program does not 
relieve the property owner from future participation in the construction of sewer 
infrastructure when available or paying current fees for the property receiving the septic 
system offset.  

 
 
SECTION 13.  Infrastructure Management 
  
A. Implement a program of sufficient detail to record the procurement, maintenance, 

management, and disposal of assets related to the divisions of the District. 
 
B. Propose operating budgets and price structures that maintain full cost pricing of services 

provided while maintaining full depreciation funding of assets. 
 
 
ADOPTED this 20th day of August 2008. 
 
 
 
/s/ Tom Shalhoub, President of the Board of Directors 
 
 
/s/ Joseph B. Zoba, Secretary of the Board of Directors 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 48 of 220



 

 

Operational Updates 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 49 of 220



 

Workshop Memorandum 16-015 

Date: January 26, 2016 

Subject: Overview of Operational Activities in Preparation and Response to the 
2016 Winter Storm Events 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District has been actively 
preparing for the El Nino weather conditions by 
reanalyzing all of the District facilities to identify 
potential problems associated with severe winter 
weather conditions and initiating appropriate 
mitigation strategies. 
 
For the period of December 1, 2015, to January 8, 
2016, the Yucaipa Valley has received nearly 4 
inches of rainfall.  The Wildwood Watershed has 
received 3.86 inches and the Oak Glen Watershed 
has received 3.94 inches.  On an average year, the 
Yucaipa Valley receives about 16 inches of rainfall. 
 

 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to provide an update on storm related issues. 

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

4

4.5

In
ch
es
 o
f 
P
re
ci
p
it
at
io
n

Seasonal Rainfall Totals 
as of January 8, 2016

Wildwood Watershed (inches) Oak Glen Watershed (inches)

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 50 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-015  Page 2 of 12 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 51 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-015  Page 3 of 12 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 52 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-015  Page 4 of 12 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 53 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-015  Page 5 of 12 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 54 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-015  Page 6 of 12 

 

 

 
 
The current strong El Niño brewing  in the Pacific Ocean shows no signs of waning, as seen  in the  latest 
satellite image from the U.S./European Ocean Surface Topography Mission (OSTM)/Jason‐2 mission.  
 
El Niño 2015 has already created weather chaos around the world. Over the next few months, forecasters 
expect the United States to feel its impacts as well.  
 
The  latest  Jason‐2  image  bears  a  striking  resemblance  to  one  from  December  1997,  by  Jason‐2's 
predecessor, the NASA/Centre National d'Etudes Spatiales (CNES) Topex/Poseidon mission, during the last 
large El Niño event. Both reflect the classic pattern of a fully developed El Niño.  
 
The images can be viewed at:  http://sealevel.jpl.nasa.gov/elnino2015/index.html  
 
The images show nearly identical, unusually high sea surface heights along the equator in the central and 
eastern Pacific: the signature of a big and powerful El Niño. Higher‐than‐normal sea surface heights are an 
indication that a thick layer of warm water is present. 
 
El Niños  are  triggered when  the  steady, westward‐blowing  trade winds  in  the Pacific weaken or  even 
reverse direction, triggering a dramatic warming of the upper ocean  in the central and eastern tropical 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 55 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-015  Page 7 of 12 

Pacific. Clouds and  storms  follow  the warm water, pumping heat and moisture high  into  the overlying 
atmosphere. These changes alter jet stream paths and affect storm tracks all over the world. 
 
This year's El Niño has caused the warm water layer that is normally piled up around Australia and Indonesia 
to thin dramatically, while in the eastern tropical Pacific, the normally cool surface waters are blanketed 
with a thick  layer of warm water. This massive redistribution of heat causes ocean temperatures to rise 
from the central Pacific to the Americas. It has sapped Southeast Asia's rain in the process, reducing rainfall 
over  Indonesia  and  contributing  to  the  growth  of massive wildfires  that have blanketed  the  region  in 
choking smoke.  
 
El Niño is also implicated in Indian heat waves caused by delayed monsoon rains, as well as Pacific island 
sea level drops, widespread coral bleaching that is damaging coral reefs, droughts in South Africa, flooding 
in South America and a record‐breaking hurricane season in the eastern tropical Pacific. Around the world, 
production of rice, wheat, coffee and other crops has been hit hard by droughts and  floods,  leading to 
higher prices.  
 
In  the United States, many of El Niño's biggest  impacts are expected  in early 2016. Forecasters at  the 
National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration favor an El Niño‐induced shift  in weather patterns to 
begin  in  the  near  future,  ushering  in  several months  of  relatively  cool  and wet  conditions  across  the 
southern United States, and relatively warm and dry conditions over the northern United States. The latest 
El Niño forecast from NOAA's Climate Prediction Center is at:   
http://www.cpc.ncep.noaa.gov/  
 
While scientists still do not know precisely how the current El Niño will affect the United States, the last 
large El Niño  in 1997‐98 was a wild ride for most of the nation.   The "Great  Ice Storm" of January 1998 
crippled northern New England and southeastern Canada, but overall, the northern tier of the United States 
experienced  long periods of mild weather and meager snowfall. Meanwhile, across the southern United 
States, a steady convoy of storms slammed most of California, moved east into the Southwest, drenched 
Texas and ‐‐ pumped up by the warm waters of the Gulf of Mexico ‐‐ wreaked havoc along the Gulf Coast, 
particularly in Florida.  
 
"In 2014, the current El Niño teased us ‐‐ wavering off and on," said Josh Willis, project scientist for the 
Jason missions at JPL. "But in early 2015, atmospheric conditions changed, and El Niño steadily expanded 
in the central and eastern Pacific. Although the sea surface height signal  in 1997 was more  intense and 
peaked in November of that year, in 2015, the area of high sea levels is larger. This could mean we have 
not yet seen the peak of this El Niño." 
 
During normal, non‐El Niño conditions, the amount of warm water in the western equatorial Pacific is so 
large that sea levels are about 20 inches (50 centimeters) higher in the western Pacific than in the eastern 
Pacific. "You can see it in the latest Jason‐2 image of the Pacific," said Willis. "The 8‐inch [20‐centimeter] 
drop in the west, coupled with the 10‐inch [25‐centimeter] rise in the east, has completely wiped out the 
tilt in sea level we usually have along the equator." 
 
The new  Jason‐2  image  shows  that  the amount of extra‐warm  surface water  from  the current El Niño 
(depicted in red and white shades) has continuously increased, especially in the eastern Pacific within 10 
degrees latitude north and south of the equator. In the western Pacific, the area of low sea level (blue and 
purple) has decreased somewhat from late October. The white and red areas indicate unusual patterns of 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 56 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-015  Page 8 of 12 

heat storage. In the white areas, the sea surface is between 6 and 10 inches (15 to 25 centimeters) above 
normal, while in the red areas, it is about 4 inches (10 centimeters) above normal. The green areas indicate 
normal conditions. The height of the ocean water relates, in part, to its temperature, and is an indicator of 
the amount of heat stored in the ocean below.  
 
Within this area, surface temperatures are greater than 86 degrees Fahrenheit (30 degrees Celsius) in the 
central equatorial Pacific and near 70 degrees Fahrenheit (21 degrees Celsius) off the coast of the Americas. 
This El Niño signal encompasses a surface area of 6 million square miles (16 million square kilometers) ‐‐ 
more than twice as big as the continental United States.  
 
While no one can predict the exact timing or intensity of U.S. El Niño impacts, for drought‐stricken California 
and the U.S. West, it's expected to bring some relief.  
 
"The water story for much of the American West over most of the past decade has been dominated by 
punishing drought," said JPL climatologist Bill Patzert. "Reservoir levels have fallen to record or near‐record 
lows, while groundwater tables have dropped dangerously in many areas. Now we're preparing to see the 
flip side of nature's water cycle ‐‐ the arrival of steady, heavy rains and snowfall."  
 
In 1982‐83 and 1997‐98, large El Niños delivered about twice the average amount of rainfall to Southern 
California, along with mudslides, floods, high winds, lightning strikes and high surf. But Patzert cautioned 
that El Niño events are not drought busters. "Over the long haul, big El Niños are infrequent and supply 
only seven percent of California's water," he said. 
 
"Looking ahead to summer, we might not be celebrating the demise of this El Niño," cautioned Patzert. "It 
could be followed by a La Niña, which could bring roughly opposite effects to the world's weather."  
 
La Niñas are essentially  the opposite of El Niño  conditions. During a  La Niña episode,  trade winds are 
stronger than normal, and the cold water that normally exists along the coast of South America extends to 
the central equatorial Pacific. La Niña episodes change global weather patterns and are associated with less 
moisture in the air over cooler ocean waters. This results in less rain along the coasts of North and South 
America and along the central and eastern equatorial Pacific, and more rain in the far Western Pacific. 
 
El Niño events are part of the long‐term, evolving state of global climate, for which measurements of sea 
surface height are a key indicator.  
 
For an animation of the evolution of the 2015 and 1997 El Niños, visit: 
https://sealevel.jpl.nasa.gov/elnino2015/2015‐animated.gif  
 
For more information on how NASA studies El Niño, visit: 
http://climatesciences.jpl.nasa.gov/enso  
 
To learn more about NASA's satellite altimetry programs, visit: 
http://sealevel.jpl.nasa.gov  
 
For more information about NASA's Earth science activities, visit: 
http://www.nasa.gov/earth  
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 57 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-015  Page 9 of 12 

 

California has 'a shot out of the drought'  
if El Niño rain persists 

 

 
With a couple of weeks of rain and snow behind them and more on the horizon for the Sierra 
Nevada  in Northern California,  state water officials expressed  cautious hope  that  this El Niño 
season could lift California out of its historic drought. 
 
“The recent rains have put us on a good trajectory to perhaps have a shot out of the drought if it 
were  to  continue  at  the  current  rate,”  said  Doug  Carlson,  a  spokesman  with  the  California 
Department of Water Resources. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 58 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-015  Page 10 of 12 

As of Wednesday, the northern Sierra Nevada had received 114% of the average rainfall typical 
during strong El Niño years, while the central Sierra Nevada  in the San Joaquin basin was doing 
even better, having received 122% of average rainfall typical during big El Niño years. 
 
The number was slightly below average for the southern Sierra Nevada, the state reported. 
 
But not all precipitation  is the same, officials caution. The mountains need snow, and  lots of  it, 
that can accumulate and slowly melt through the spring and summer, feeding the state’s streams, 
rivers and lakes. 
 
“Right now, we’re doing better than last year. But nowhere near the 150% of normal that we had 
been predicting,” Carlson said. “It  remains  to be seen  if we’re going  to be end‐of‐the‐drought 
happy or better‐than‐last‐year happy.” 
 
Many of the state’s major reservoirs are below historical averages ‐‐ Lake Shasta is at 40% when 
the average is 60%, while Lake Oroville is at 34% compared with the historical average of 54%. 
 
“We have such a huge deficit, it’s a very large number we have to recoup,” said Craig Shoemaker, 
a meteorologist in Sacramento. 
 
But Shoemaker said the pattern for the first part of the year so far has been good. 
 
Though the storms hitting the Bay Area, Lake Tahoe and beyond are typical for the winter, they’re 
carrying more moisture because of El Niño, Shoemaker said. 
 
Another significant rain storm was expected in Northern California over the weekend, he said. 
 
“Every storm we get is a little bit stronger than it would have been without El Niño,” Shoemaker 
said. “We’re off to a good start. We just need it to continue for the rest of the winter.” 
   

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 59 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-015  Page 11 of 12 

 
 

Thanks El Niño! 44‐foot rise of Folsom Lake 

offers hope for California's worst ever drought 
By Brandon Mercer 

Updated 5:01 pm, Wednesday, January 20, 2016  

 

California lake levels are rising as fast as the stock market is falling, with Folsom Lake east of 
Sacramento rising an astonishing 44 feet in just over a month and Lake Oroville, the second most 
expansive water storage facility in the state rising another 20 feet. 

Early December saw Folsom Lake, just off Highway 50 on the way up to South Lake Tahoe, 
dwindle to the hydrological equivalent of a mud puddle. 

It reached its lowest levels since they started filling it up after building the dam of around 349 
feet above sea level. 

By today, it has risen over 44 feet to just under 393 feet above sea level. 

The worst year previously was 1976‐1977.  Then, in fall of 1977, it began filling up again, 
following a trajectory that looks rather similar to what's happening right now. 

And, to be clear, as you can see in the shaded aqua area in the graph below, the lake ALWAYS 
rises a hundred feet or much more every winter or spring.  The difference is it was on a track 
similar to 1976‐1977 of flatlining over the past years, and now it's getting the hoped‐for rocket‐
like rise. 

The real answers will be found by checking back in a month to see if the chart is still going 
upward, toward that normal trend line. 

The photograph gallery shows the lake through a dry December, and then photos of Lake 
Oroville dry, then significantly higher in new photos this week.   

See http://www.sfgate.com/bayarea/article/el‐nino‐california‐drought‐folsom‐lake‐6772009.php 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 60 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-015  Page 12 of 12 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 61 of 220



 

Workshop Memorandum 16-016 

Date: January 26, 2016 

Subject: Review of Updated Standard Specifications for Drinking Water, 
Recycled Water, and Sewer Facilities 

 
On August 20, 2014, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2014-08 related to updated 
Standard Specifications for drinking water, recycled water and sewer facilities.  The District staff 
has made minor changes to the standard drawings and recommends the adoption of the entire 
packet due to the modified title block shown on each page. 
 
The drinking water standard drawings begin on page 3 of 133, the sewer standard drawings begin 
on page 71 of 133, and the recycled water standard drawings begin on page 107 of 133. 
 
Following the approval of the standard drawings, the District’s website will be updated to include 
the entire package of standard drawings as well as individual standards for use by consultants, 
engineers and contractors. 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 62 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 2 of 133 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-0x 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
ADOPTING THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE DESIGN AND 

PROCESSING, FURNISHING OF MATERIALS, AND CONSTRUCTION OF 
DRINKING WATER, RECYCLED WATER AND SEWER FACILITIES 

 
 
Whereas, the Yucaipa Valley Water District’s Board of Directors desires to adopt revised 
and updated comprehensive drinking water, recycled water and sewer standard 
specifications that reflect technological advances, product and material availability, 
regulatory requirements, and District policies. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that the Board of Directors 
of the Yucaipa Valley Water District hereby adopts the drinking water, recycled water and 
sewer standard specifications attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 
 
 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this __th day of January 2016. 
 
 
 
YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT  ATTEST: 

   
Lonni Granlund, President Board of Directors  Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 63 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 3 of 133 

 
 

12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399 Phone: (909) 797-5117 

 

 

Standard Specifications for the  
Design and Processing,  

Furnishing of Materials, and 
Construction of Drinking Water Facilities 

 
 
 

January __, 2016 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 64 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 4 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 65 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 5 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 66 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 6 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 67 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 7 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 68 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 8 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 69 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 9 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 70 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 10 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 71 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 11 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 72 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 12 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 73 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 13 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 74 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 14 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 75 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 15 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 76 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 16 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 77 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 17 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 78 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 18 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 79 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 19 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 80 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 20 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 81 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 21 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 82 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 22 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 83 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 23 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 84 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 24 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 85 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 25 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 86 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 26 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 87 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 27 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 88 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 28 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 89 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 29 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 90 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 30 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 91 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 31 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 92 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 32 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 93 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 33 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 94 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 34 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 95 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 35 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 96 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 36 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 97 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 37 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 98 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 38 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 99 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 39 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 100 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 40 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 101 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 41 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 102 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 42 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 103 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 43 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 104 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 44 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 105 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 45 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 106 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 46 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 107 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 47 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 108 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 48 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 109 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 49 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 110 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 50 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 111 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 51 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 112 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 52 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 113 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 53 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 114 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 54 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 115 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 55 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 116 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 56 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 117 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 57 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 118 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 58 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 119 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 59 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 120 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 60 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 121 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 61 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 122 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 62 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 123 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 63 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 124 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 64 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 125 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 65 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 126 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 66 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 127 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 67 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 128 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 68 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 129 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 69 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 130 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 70 of 133 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 131 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 71 of 133 

 
 

12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399 Phone: (909) 797-5117 

 

 

Standard Specifications for the  
Design and Processing,  

Furnishing of Materials, and 
Construction of Sewer Facilities 

 
 
 

January __, 2016 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 132 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 72 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 133 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 73 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 134 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 74 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 135 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 75 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 136 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 76 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 137 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 77 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 138 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 78 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 139 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 79 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 140 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 80 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 141 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 81 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 142 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 82 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 143 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 83 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 144 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 84 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 145 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 85 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 146 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 86 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 147 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 87 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 148 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 88 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 149 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 89 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 150 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 90 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 151 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 91 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 152 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 92 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 153 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 93 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 154 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 94 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 155 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 95 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 156 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 96 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 157 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 97 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 158 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 98 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 159 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 99 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 160 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 100 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 161 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 101 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 162 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 102 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 163 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 103 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 164 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 104 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 165 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 105 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 166 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 106 of 133 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 167 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 107 of 133 

 
 

12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399 Phone: (909) 797-5117 

 

 

Standard Specifications for the  
Design and Processing,  

Furnishing of Materials, and 
Construction of Recycled Water 

Facilities 
 
 
 

January __, 2016 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 168 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 108 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 169 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 109 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 170 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 110 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 171 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 111 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 172 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 112 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 173 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 113 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 174 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 114 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 175 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 115 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 176 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 116 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 177 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 117 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 178 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 118 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 179 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 119 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 180 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 120 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 181 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 121 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 182 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 122 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 183 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 123 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 184 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 124 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 185 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 125 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 186 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 126 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 187 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 127 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 188 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 128 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 189 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 129 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 190 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 130 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 191 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 131 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 192 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 132 of 133 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 193 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-016  Page 133 of 133 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 194 of 220



 

Capital Improvement Projects 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 195 of 220



 

Workshop Memorandum 16-017 

Date: January 26, 2016 

Subject: Status Report on the Construction of a 6.0 Million Gallon Drinking 
Water Reservoir R-12.4 - Calimesa 

 
At the regular meeting on July 16, 2014, the Board authorized the solicitation of bids for the 
construction of a 6.0 Million Gallon R-12.4 Reservoir located on Singleton Road in Calimesa 
[Director Memorandum No. 14-060].  On November 19, 2014, the Board of Directors awarded the 
construction contract for the reservoir facility to Gateway Pacific Contractors [Director 
Memorandum No. 14-091].   
 

 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to provide an update on the progress of the reservoir 
construction project.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 196 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-017  Page 2 of 4 

 
 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 197 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-017  Page 3 of 4 

 
 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 198 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-017  Page 4 of 4 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 199 of 220



 

Workshop Memorandum 16-018 

Date: January 26, 2016 

Subject: Status Report on the Digester Cleaning and Cover Replacement 
Project at the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District operates and maintains four anaerobic digesters for sludge 
conditioning, each with a diameter of 45 feet and a side water depth of 22 feet, yielding a working 
capacity of approximately 262,000 gallons per digester.  The digesters treat sludge drawn from 
both the primary clarifiers and from the dissolved air flotation thickeners.  Digested sludge flows 
by gravity and can be stored temporarily in a sludge holding tank before being conveyed to the 
belt presses for dewatering.  To keep the digesters functioning properly they should be cleaned 
every 8-10 years in order to remove the accumulated build-up of sand, grit, and other debris.   
 

 
 
When the digesters were cleaned in 2005, the District staff assessed the condition of the digesters 
and related equipment.  Based on corrosion identified at this time, the District made a decision to 
replace at least two covers the next time the digesters were scheduled to be cleaned. 
 
In 2015, the District staff worked with RMC to develop a construction bid schedule that included 
a series of construction alternatives for cleaning and/or replacement of the digester covers.  After 
carefully evaluating the cleaning/construction bids received for this project, the Board of Directors 
decided to award a construction contract to Pascal & Ludwig for the cleaning and replacement of 
four digester covers for a sum not to exceed $2,175,000. [DM 15-041] 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to provide an update on the status of the construction project. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 200 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-018  Page 2 of 4 

 
 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 201 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-018  Page 3 of 4 

 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 202 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-018  Page 4 of 4 

 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 203 of 220



 

 

Administrative Items

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 204 of 220



 

Workshop Memorandum 16-019 

Date: January 26, 2016 

Subject: Demolition of the Building, Basement and Foundation at 35192 Cedar 
Avenue, Yucaipa (Assessor Parcel Number 0303-232-17) 

 
At the board workshop held on May 27, 2014, the District staff 
discussed the need to demolish the existing building at 35192 
Cedar Avenue.  With concurrence from the Board of Directors, 
the District staff proceeded to move the documents stored and 
this facility, remove the windows, and physically disconnect all 
utilities (water, sewer, electrical, phone and gas services).  At 
the board meeting on June 17, 2015, the Board of Directors 
authorized District staff to proceed with the demolition of the 
structures on the property. 
 
The District staff has completed the Request for Proposals 
(RFP) to demolish the structure on the property.  The well site 
located to the north of the building will remain as a monitoring well, to be surrounded by a 6’ 
tubular steel fence.  This well site is important to meet our groundwater monitoring and 
management obligations pursuant to the recently enacted Sustainable Groundwater Management 
Act (http://groundwater.ca.gov/). 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 205 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-019  Page 2 of 5 

The District received three bids for the demolition of the structures at this site: 
 Dusting Smith Equipment as DSE Grading and Demo - $19,900 
 Jeremy Harris Construction - $25,500 
 Borden Excavating - $49,555 

 

 
 

$19,900

$25,500

$49,555

DSE Grading and Demo

Jeremy Harris Construction

Borden Excavating

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 206 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-019  Page 3 of 5 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 207 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-019  Page 4 of 5 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 208 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-019  Page 5 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 209 of 220



 

Workshop Memorandum 16-020 

Date: January 26, 2016 

Subject: Overview of Procurement Methodologies and Emergency Procedures 

 
As discussed at the regular board meeting on January 20, 2016 [Director Memorandum No. 16-
011], the District staff has implemented a new procurement system that has been used to solicit 
bids for the demolition of the Cedar Avenue facilities [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-019].  This 
system will be used by the Public Works Department for the solicitation of paving costs associated 
with District construction projects. 
 

 
 
Over the past twenty years, the Board of Directors and the District staff responded to three 
significant emergency facility repairs that were beyond the capability of the District staff to repair 
in an efficient and effective manner.  Two of the emergencies involved sewer force mainline 
failures near Lift Station No. 1, and the third involved the sewer bridge south of Interstate 10.  
While these issues do not occur on a regular basis, the Board of Directors requested the 
preparation of a policy that outlines the process and procedure used to respond to emergency 
situations.  The attached resolution has been prepared as a draft document for discussion by the 
Board of Directors.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 210 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-020  Page 2 of 3 

DRAFT RESOLUTION 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-0x 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
ADOPTING EXCEPTIONS TO STANDARD PROCUREMENT PRACTICES  

TO AVOID POTENTIAL EMERGENCIES AND TO RESPOND  
TO EMERGENCY SITUATIONS 

 
 
Whereas, the Yucaipa Valley Water District maintains and operates drinking water, 
sewer, recycled water and brineline related infrastructure that is necessary to protect 
public health, safety and property in the region; and 
 
Whereas, the Yucaipa Valley Water District Board of Directors recognize that there will 
be times when the District staff must use vendors, contractors and consultants to meet 
the needs of emergency situations for the immediate supplies, services, or construction 
that otherwise cannot be met through traditional procurement methods. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that the Board of 
Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District hereby adopts the following process for the 
procurement of services in advance of a disaster or in response to an emergency 
situation. 
 
Emergency Procurement - Award of a Contract without Competition 
 
An emergency procurement involves a specialized situation or event whereby the District 
staff, through the General Manager or his/her designee, is pre-authorized to procure 
services, supplies or construction repairs without the use of a competitive procurement 
process.   
 
An emergency procurement may only be used when circumstances create potential harm 
or risk of harm to public health, welfare, safety, or property.  Circumstances that may 
create harm or risk to health, welfare, safety, or property are defined by the General 
Manager and include, but are not limited to: 
 

A. Damage or potential damage to a facility or infrastructure resulting from 
flood, fire, earthquake, storm, explosion or other conditions; 
 

B. Failure or potential failure of a public building, equipment, road, bridge, 
utility, pipeline, reservoir, pump/lift station, treatment plant, treatment 
process, or similar situation that may impact an ancillary service provider to 
the District; 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 211 of 220



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-020  Page 3 of 3 

 
C. Terrorist activity; 

 
D. Epidemics; 
 
E. Civil unrest; 
 
F. Events that impair the ability of the District to function or perform required 

services; 
 
G. Situations that may cause harm or injury to life or property; or 
 
H. Other conditions as determined by the General Manager. 

 
Emergency procurements are those procurements necessary to mitigate an emergency 
situation or the reasonable potential of an emergency. 
 
While a standard procurement process is not required under an emergency procurement, 
when practicable, the District should seek to obtain as much competition as possible 
through use of phone quotes, Internet quotes, limited invitations to bid, or other selection 
methods while avoiding harm, or risk of harm, to the public health, safety, welfare, 
property, or impairing the ability of a public entity to function or perform required services. 
 
The District staff shall provide information about the emergency procurement of supplies, 
services or construction activity in the form of a written memorandum or presentation at 
a publicly noticed board meeting or board workshop. 
 
 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this __ day of February 2016. 
 
 
 
YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT  ATTEST: 

   
Lonni Granlund, President Board of Directors  Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 212 of 220



 

 

Director Comments 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 213 of 220



June 2014 
 

 
 

FACTS ABOUT THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 

Service Area Size: 40 square miles (sphere of influence is 68 square miles) 
 
Elevation Change: 3,140 foot elevation change (from 2,044 to 5,184 feet) 
 
Number of Employees: 5 elected board members 

57 full time employees 
 
Operating Budget: Water Division - $13,072,750  
 Sewer Division - $11,689,000 
 Recycled Water Division - $433,500 
 Total Annual Budget - $25,195,250 
 
Number of Services: 12,206 water connections serving 16,843 units 

13,492 sewer connections serving 20,312 units 
62 recycled water connections 

 
Water System: 215 miles of drinking water pipelines 

27 reservoirs - 34 million gallons of storage capacity 
18 pressure zones 
12,000 ac-ft annual water demand (3.9 billion gallons) 
Two water filtration facilities: 

- 1 mgd at Oak Glen Surface Water Filtration Facility 
- 12 mgd at Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility 

 
Sewer System: 8.0 million gallon treatment capacity - current flow at 4.0 mgd 

205 miles of sewer mainlines 
5 sewer lift stations 
4,500 ac-ft annual recycled water prod. (1.46 billion gallons) 

 
Recycled Water: 22 miles of recycled water pipelines 

5 reservoirs - 12 million gallons of storage 
1,200 ac-ft annual recycled demand (0.4 billion gallons) 

 
Brine Disposal:  2.2 million gallon desalination facility at sewer treatment plant 

1.108 million gallons of Inland Empire Brine Line capacity 
0.295 million gallons of treatment capacity in Orange County

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 214 of 220



June 2014 
 

 

 
  

THE MEASUREMENT OF WATER PURITY 
 

One part per hundred is generally represented by the percent (%).  
This is equivalent to about fifteen minutes out of one day. 

 
One part per thousand denotes one part per 1000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about one and a half minutes out of one day. 
 
One part per million (ppm) denotes one part per 1,000,000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about 32 seconds out of a year. 
 
One part per billion (ppb) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000 parts.   

This is equivalent to about three seconds out of a century. 
 
One part per trillion (ppt) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000 parts. 

This is equivalent to about three seconds out of every hundred thousand years. 
 
One part per quadrillion (ppq) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000,000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about two and a half minutes out of the age of the Earth (4.5 
billion years).  

 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 215 of 220



June 2014 
 

 
  

GLOSSARY OF COMMONLY USED TERMS 
 
Every profession has specialized terms which generally evolve to facilitate communication between individuals.  
The routine use of these terms tends to exclude those who are unfamiliar with the particular specialized language 
of the group.  Sometimes jargon can create communication cause difficulties where professionals in related fields 
use different terms for the same phenomena. 

Below are commonly used water terms and abbreviations with commonly used definitions.  If there is any 
discrepancy in definitions, the District's Regulations Governing Water Service is the final and binding definition.  

 

Acre Foot of Water - The volume of water (325,850 gallons, or 43,560 cubic feet) that would cover an area of 
one acre to a depth of 1 foot.  

Activated Sludge Process – A secondary biological sewer treatment process where bacteria reproduce at a 
high rate with the introduction of excess air or oxygen, and consume dissolved nutrients in the wastewater. 

Annual Water Quality Report - The document is prepared annually and provides information on water quality, 
constituents in the water, compliance with drinking water standards and educational material on tap water.  It is 
also referred to as a Consumer Confidence Report (CCR).  

Aquifer - The natural underground area with layers of porous, water-bearing materials (sand, gravel) capable of 
yielding a supply of water; see Groundwater basin.  

Backflow - The reversal of water's normal direction of flow.  When water passes through a water meter into a 
home or business it should not reverse flow back into the water mainline.  

Best Management Practices (BMPs) - Methods or techniques found to be the most effective and practical 
means in achieving an objective.  Often used in the context of water conservation.  

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) – The amount of oxygen used when organic matter undergoes 
decomposition by microorganisms.  Testing for BOD is done to assess the amount of organic matter in water. 

Biosolids – Biosolids are nutrient rich organic and highly treated solid materials produced by the sewer treatment 
process.  This high-quality product can be used as a soil amendment on farm land or further processed as an 
earth-like product for commercial and home gardens to improve and maintain fertile soil and stimulate plant 
growth. 

Catch Basin – A chamber usually built at the curb line of a street, which conveys surface water for discharge 
into a storm sewer. 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) – Projects for repair, rehabilitation, and replacement of assets.  Also 
includes treatment improvements, additional capacity, and projects for the support facilities. 

Collector Sewer – The first element of a wastewater collection system used to collect and carry wastewater 
from one or more building sewer laterals to a main sewer. 

Coliform Bacteria – A group of bacteria found in the intestines of humans and other animals, but also 
occasionally found elsewhere and is generally used as an indicator of sewage pollution.   

Combined Sewer Overflow – The portion of flow from a combined sewer system, which discharges into a water 
body from an outfall located upstream of a wastewater treatment plant, usually during wet weather conditions. 

Combined Sewer System– Generally older sewer systems designed to convey both sewage and storm water 
into one pipe to a wastewater treatment plant. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 216 of 220



June 2014 
 

Conjunctive Use - The coordinated management of surface water and groundwater supplies to maximize the 
yield of the overall water resource.  Active conjunctive use uses artificial recharge, where surface water is 
intentionally percolated or injected into aquifers for later use.  Passive conjunctive use is to simply rely on surface 
water in wet years and use groundwater in dry years. 

Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) - see Annual Water Quality Report.  

Cross-Connection - The actual or potential connection between a potable water supply and a non-potable 
source, where it is possible for a contaminant to enter the drinking water supply. 

Disinfection By-Products (DBPs) - The category of compounds formed when disinfectants in water systems 
react with natural organic matter present in the source water supplies.  Different disinfectants produce different 
types or amounts of disinfection byproducts. Disinfection byproducts for which regulations have been established 
have been identified in drinking water, including trihalomethanes, haloacetic acids, bromate, and chlorite 

Drought - a period of below average rainfall causing water supply shortages.  

Dry Weather Flow – Flow in a sanitary sewer during periods of dry weather in which the sanitary sewer is under 
minimum influence of inflow and infiltration. 

Fire Flow - The ability to have a sufficient quantity of water available to the distribution system to be delivered 
through fire hydrants or private fire sprinkler systems.  

Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) - A measurement of the average number of gallons of water use by the 
number of people served each day in a water system. The calculation is made by dividing the total gallons of 
water used each day by the total number of people using the water system.  

Groundwater Basin - An underground body of water or aquifer defined by physical boundaries.  

Groundwater Recharge - The process of placing water in an aquifer.  Can be a naturally occurring process or 
artificially enhanced.  

Hard Water - Water having a high concentration of minerals, typically calcium and magnesium ions.  

Hydrologic Cycle - The process of evaporation of water into the air and its return to earth in the form of 
precipitation (rain or snow).  This process also includes transpiration from plants, percolation into the ground, 
groundwater movement, and runoff into rivers, streams and the ocean; see Water cycle.  

Infiltration – Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and/or building laterals from the ground 
through defective pipes, pipe joints, connections, or manholes.  Infiltration does not include inflow.  See Inflow. 

Inflow - Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and building sewer from sources such as roof 
vents, yard drains, area drains, foundation drains, drains from springs and swampy areas, manhole covers, cross 
connections between storm drains and sanitary sewers, catch basins, cooling towers, storm waters, surface 
runoff, street wash waters, or drainage.  Inflow does not include infiltration.  See Infiltration. 

Inflow / Infiltration (I/I) – The total quantity of water from both inflow and infiltration. 

Mains, Distribution - A network of pipelines that delivers water (drinking water or recycled water) from 
transmission mains to residential and commercial properties, usually pipe diameters of 4" to 16".  

Mains, Transmission - A system of pipelines that deliver water (drinking water or recycled water) from a source 
of supply the distribution mains, usually pipe diameters of greater than 16".  

Meter - A device capable of measuring, in either gallons or cubic feet, a quantity of water delivered by the District 
to a service connection.  

Overdraft - The pumping of water from a groundwater basin or aquifer in excess of the supply flowing into the 
basin. This pumping results in a depletion of the groundwater in the basin which has a net effect of lowering the 
levels of water in the aquifer.  

Peak Flow – The maximum flow that occurs over a specific length of time (e.g., daily, hourly, instantaneously). 

Pipeline - Connected piping that carries water, oil or other liquids.  See Mains, Distribution and Mains, 
Transmission. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 217 of 220



June 2014 
 

Point of Responsibility, Metered Service - The connection point at the outlet side of a water meter where a 
landowner's responsibility for all conditions, maintenance, repairs, use and replacement of water service facilities 
begins, and the District's responsibility ends.  

Potable Water - Water that is used for human consumption and regulated by the California Department of Public 
Health.  

Pressure Reducing Valve - A device used to reduce the pressure in a domestic water system when the water 
pressure exceeds desirable levels.  

Pump Station - A drinking water or recycled water facility where pumps are used to push water up to a higher 
elevation or different location.  

Reservoir - A water storage facility where water is stored to be used at a later time for peak demands or 
emergencies such as fire suppression.  Drinking water and recycled water systems will typically use concrete or 
steel reservoirs.  The State Water Project system considers lakes, such as Shasta Lake and Folsom Lake to be 
water storage reservoirs. 

Runoff - Water that travels downward over the earth's surface due to the force of gravity.  It includes water 
running in streams as well as over land.  

Sanitary Sewer System - Sewer collection system designed to carry sewage, consisting of domestic, 
commercial, and industrial wastewater. This type of system is not designed nor intended to carry water from 
rainfall, snowmelt, or groundwater sources.  See Combined Sewer System. 

Sanitary Sewer Overflow – Overflow from a sanitary sewer system caused when total wastewater flow exceeds 
the capacity of the system.  See Combined Sewer Overflow. 

Santa Ana River Interceptor (SARI) Line – A regional brine line designed to convey 30 million gallons per day 
of non-reclaimable wastewater from the upper Santa Ana River basin to the sewer treatment plant operated by 
Orange County Sanitation District. 

Secondary Treatment – Biological sewer treatment, particularly the activated-sludge process, where bacteria 
and other microorganisms consume dissolved nutrients in wastewater. 

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) - A computerized system which provides the ability to 
remotely monitor and control water system facilities such as reservoirs, pumps and other elements of water 
delivery.  

Service Connection - The water piping system connecting a customer's system with a District water main 
beginning at the outlet side of the point of responsibility, including all plumbing and equipment located on a parcel 
required for the District's provision of water service to that parcel.  

Sludge – Untreated solid material created by the treatment of sewage. 

Smart Irrigation Controller - A device that automatically adjusts the time and frequency which water is applied 
to landscaping based on real-time weather such as rainfall, wind, temperature and humidity.  

Special District - A political subdivision of a state established to provide a public services, such as water supply 
or sanitation, within a specific geographic area.   

Surface Water - Water found in lakes, streams, rivers, oceans or reservoirs behind dams.  

Total Suspended Solids (TSS) – The amount of solids floating and in suspension in water or sewage. 

Transpiration - The process by which water vapor is released into the atmosphere by living plants.  

Trickling Filter – A biological secondary treatment process in which bacteria and other microorganisms, growing 
as slime on the surface of rocks or plastic media, consume nutrients in primary treated sewage as it trickles over 
them. 

Underground Service Alert (USA) - A free service that notifies utilities such as water, telephone, cable and 
sewer companies of pending excavations within the area (dial 8-1-1 at least 2 working days before you dig).  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 218 of 220



June 2014 
 

Urban Runoff - Water from city streets and domestic properties that typically carries pollutants into the storm 
drains, rivers, lakes, and oceans. 

Valve - A device that regulates, directs or controls the flow of water by opening, closing or partially obstructing 
various passageways.  

Wastewater – Any water that enters the sanitary sewer. 

Water Banking - The practice of actively storing or exchanging in-lieu surface water supplies in available 
groundwater basin storage space for later extraction and use by the storing party or for sale or exchange to a 
third party.  Water may be banked as an independent operation or as part of a conjunctive use program.  

Water cycle - The continuous movement water from the earth's surface to the atmosphere and back again; see 
Hydrologic cycle.  

Water Pressure - Pressure created by the weight and elevation of water and/or generated by pumps that deliver 
water to the tap.  

Water Service Line - The pipeline that delivers potable water to a residence or business from the District's water 
system.  Typically the water service line is a 1” to 1½” diameter pipe for residential properties.  

Watershed - A region or land area that contributes to the drainage or catchment area above a specific point on 
a stream or river.  

Water Table - The upper surface of the zone of saturation of groundwater in an unconfined aquifer.  

Water Transfer - A transaction, in which a holder of a water right or entitlement voluntarily sells/exchanges to a 
willing buyer the right to use all or a portion of the water under that water right or entitlement.  

Water Well - A hole drilled into the ground to tap an underground water aquifer.  

Wetlands - Lands which are fully saturated or under water at least part of the year, like seasonal vernal pools 
or swamps.  

Wet Weather Flow – Dry weather flow combined with stormwater introduced into a combined sewer system, 
and dry weather flow combined with infiltration/inflow into a separate sewer system. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 219 of 220



June 2014 
 

 
  

COMMONLY USED ABBREVIATIONS 
 

AQMD Air Quality Management District 

BOD Biochemical Oxygen Demand 

CARB California Air Resources Board 

CCTV Closed Circuit Television 

CWA Clean Water Act 

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

FOG Fats, Oils, and Grease 

GPD Gallons per day 

MGD Million gallons per day 

O & M Operations and Maintenance 

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration  

POTW Publicly Owned Treatment Works 

PPM Parts per million 

RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board  

SARI Santa Ana River Inceptor 

SAWPA Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority 

SBVMWD San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 

SCADA Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system 

SSMP Sanitary Sewer Management Plan 

SSO Sanitary Sewer Overflow 

SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board  

TDS Total Dissolved Solids 

TMDL Total Maximum Daily Load 

TSS Total Suspended Solids 

WDR Waste Discharge Requirements 

YVWD Yucaipa Valley Water District 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - January 26, 2016 - Page 220 of 220




